Minutes of the regular monthly meeting of the Planning Commission of Henrico County held in the County Administration Building in the Government Center at Parham and Hungary Springs Roads beginning at 9:00 a.m. Wednesday, July 22, 2015.

3

Members Present: Mr. Robert H. Witte, Jr., Chairman (Brookland)

Mr. Tommy Branin, (Three Chopt)

Ms. Bonnie-Leigh Jones, C.P.C. (Tuckahoe)

Mr. Eric Leabough, C.P.C.,(Varina)

Ms. Jean Moore, Assistant Director of Planning

Acting Secretary

Mrs. Patricia S. O'Bannon,

Board of Supervisors' Representative

Members Absent:

Mr. C. W. Archer, C.P.C., Vice-Chairman (Fairfield)

Mr. R. Joseph Emerson, Jr., AICP, Director of Planning, Secretary

Others Present:

Ms. Leslie A. News, PLA, Principal Planner

Mr. Kevin D. Wilhite, C.P.C., AICP, County Planner

Mr. Michael F. Kennedy, County Planner

Ms. Christina L. Goggin, AICP, County Planner Mr. Tony Greulich, C.P.C., County Planner

Mr. Matt Ward, County Planner

Mr. Gregory Garrison, AICP, County Planner Mr. Lee Pambid, C.P.C., County Planner Ms. Aimee B. Crady, AICP, County Planner

Mr. Paul M. Gidley, County Planner

Mr. J.T. (Tom) Tokarz, Deputy County Attorney

Ms. Sharon Smidler, Traffic Engineer

Ms. Logan Hamilton, Office Assistant/Recording Secretary

5 6 7

Mrs. Patricia S. O'Bannon, the Board of Supervisors' representative, abstains on all cases unless otherwise noted.

8 9 10

Mr. Witte - Good morning. Welcome to the July 22nd meeting of the Planning Commission. This is our Subdivisions and Plans of Development hearing. I ask that you turn off or mute your cell phones while standing with us for the Pledge of Allegiance.

12 13 14

15

16

11

We have one member absent. Mr. Archer is on vacation. We do have a quorum. And we have Mrs. O'Bannon with us as the Board of Supervisors' representative. We do have some special guests here, and we'll get them in just a minute. With that I'll turn the meeting over to Ms. Moore.

Ms. Moore - Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First on your agenda are the requests for deferrals and withdrawals for your consideration. Those will be presented by Ms. Leslie News.

Ms. News - Good morning, members of the Commission. We have four items that are requested for deferral on your agenda. The first is found on page 7 or your agenda, and is located in the Three Chopt District. This is POD2015-00094, Innsbrook Commercial at 4101 Dominion Boulevard. The applicant has requested a deferral to the September 23, 2015 meeting.

(Deferred from the June 24, 2015 Meeting)

PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT AND LIGHTING PLAN

POD2015-00094 Innsbrook Commercial at 4101 Dominion Blvd – 4101 Dominion Blvd Timmons Group for Doswell Properties, Inc. and Dominion GA, LLC: Request for approval of a plan of development and lighting plan, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code, to demolish an existing one-story retail building, and construct a one-story 14,610 square foot building containing 4,200 square feet of medical office, 3,400 square feet of retail, and 7,010 square feet of restaurant with one drive-through facility. The 2.37-acre site is located at the northeast corner of the intersection of W. Broad Street and Dominion Blvd., on parcel 747-760-6472. The zoning is B-2C, Business District. County water and sewer. (Three Chopt)

Mr. Witte - Is there anyone in opposition to the deferral of POD2015-00094, Innsbrook Commercial at 4101 Dominion Boulevard? I see none.

Mr. Branin - Mr. Chairman, I'd like to move that POD2015-00094, Innsbrook Commercial at 4101 Dominion Boulevard, be deferred to the September 23rd meeting per the applicant's request.

Ms. Jones - Second.

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Branin, a second by Mrs. Jones. All in favor say aye. All opposed? The motion passes.

At the request of the applicant, the Planning Commission deferred POD2015-00094, Innsbrook Commercial at 4101 Dominion Boulevard, to its September 23, 2015 meeting.

Ms. News - The next item is on page 11 of your agenda and is located in the Fairfield District. This is POD2015-00111, Our Store Furniture Store. The applicant has requested a deferral to the September 23, 2015 meeting.



(Deferred from the June 24, 2015 Meeting)

PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT

55

POD2015-00111
Our Store Furniture Store
– 837 Azalea Avenue

Advanced Engineering, LLC for S & L Creative Visions, LLC: Request for approval of a plan of development, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code, to construct a 1,238 square foot furniture showroom building. The 0.303 acre site is located along the southern line of Azalea Avenue at its intersection with Crenshaw Avenue, at the City-County Boundary line on parcels 788-744-0451and 788-744-1549. The zoning is B-2 Business District. County water and sewer. (Fairfield)

56 57

Mr. Witte - Is there any opposition to the deferral of POD2015-00111, Our Store Furniture Store? I see none.

58 59

Mr. Leabough - Mr. Chairman, I move that POD2015-00111, Our Store Furniture Store, be deferred at the applicant's request to the September 23rd meeting.

62 63

Mr. Branin - Second.

64 65

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Leabough, a second by Mr. Branin. All in favor say aye. All opposed? The motion passes.

66 7

At the request of the applicant, the Planning Commission deferred POD2015-00111, Our Store Furniture Store, to its September 23, 2015 meeting.

70 71 72

69

Ms. News - Next on page 17 of your agenda and located in the Fairfield District is POD2015-00227, Dollar General at 200 Azalea Avenue. The applicant has requested a deferral to the August 13, 2015 meeting, which is your Zoning meeting.

73 74

PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT

75 76

POD2015-00227 Dollar General at 200 Azalea Avenue – 200 Azalea Avenue Highmark Engineering, LLC and/or for Dreamlen Company, LLC, and Par 3 Development Group, LLC: Request for approval of a plan of development, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code, to construct a 9,459 square foot retail building. The 2.09 - acre site is located on the northwest corner at the intersection of Azalea Avenue and Wilkinson Road, on parcel 794-745-2416. The zoning is B-1C Business District (Conditional) and ASO Airport Safety Overlay District. County water and sewer. (Fairfield)

77 78

Mr. Witte - Is there anyone in opposition to the deferral of POD2015-00227, Dollar General at 200 Azalea Avenue? I see none.

	Mr. Chairman, I move that POD2015-00227, Dollar General at ferred at the applicant's request to the August 13th meeting.				
Mr. Witte - Second. We have a motion by Mr. Leabough, a second by Mr. Witte. All in favor say aye. All opposed? The motion passes.					
At the request of the applicant, the Planning Commission deferred POD2015-00227, Dollar General at 200 Azalea Avenue, to its August 13, 2015 meeting.					
Ms. News - Next on page 19 of your agenda and located in Brookland District is SUB2015-00092, Emerson Residence. This is an alternative fence height request. This is a deferral request by the Planning Commission to August 13, 2015.					
ALTERNATIVE FENCE HI	EIGHT PLAN				
SUB2015-00092 Emerson Residence – Greendale Forest – 6613 Fernwood Street	Joann Emerson: Request for approval of an alternative fence height plan, as required by Chapter 24, Sections 24-106, 24-95 (I)(7)(b) and 24-106.2 of the Henrico County Code, to allow a 6 foot tall fence to encroach 24 feet into the front yard. The 6,500 square foot site is located at 6613 Fernwood Street, on the east line of Fernwood Street, approximately 880 feet south of Penick Road, on parcel 771-746-2846. The zoning is R-4 One-Family Residential District. County water and sewer. (Brookland)				
Emerson Residence? I se	Is there any opposition to the deferral of SUB2015-00092, see none. Therefore, I move that SUB2015-00092, Emerson the August 13, 2015 meeting by request of the Commission.				
Ms. Jones -	Second.				
Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Witte, a second by Mrs. Jones. All in favor say aye. All opposed? The motion passes.					
	ing Commission, the Planning Commission deferred SUB2015- e, to its August 13, 2015 meeting.				
Ms. News -	Staff is not aware of any further requests.				
Mr. Witte -	Thank you, ma'am.				
Ms. Moore - which, again, will be presen	Mr. Chairman, next on your agenda are the expedited items, nted by Ms. Leslie News.				
	Mr. Witte - Witte. All in favor say aye. At the request of the applicated General at 200 Azalea Ave Ms. News - District is SUB2015-00092 request. This is a deferral result. ALTERNATIVE FENCE HIS SUB2015-00092 Emerson Residence - Greendale Forest - 6613 Fernwood Street Mr. Witte - Emerson Residence? I see Residence, be deferred to Ms. Jones - Mr. Witte - favor say aye. All opposed At the request of the Plannon 00092, Emerson Residence Ms. News - Mr. Witte - Ms. News - Mr. Witte -				

Ms. News - We have two items on our expedited agenda this morning. The first item is found on page 4 of your agenda. This is a transfer of approval for POD-06-08. It's a portion of a POD for Diamond Springs, formerly Eubank Center. Staff recommends approval. This is in the Varina District.

TRANSFER OF APPROVAL

> POD-06-08 (pt.) POD2015-00274 Diamond Springs (formerly Eubank Center) – 4208 Eubank Road

Engineering Design Associates for Diamond Virginia Partners, LLC, and Eubank Center, LLC: Request for transfer of approval of a portion of a POD as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code from Eubank Center, LLC to Diamond Virginia Partners, LLC. The 1.874-acre portion of the 6.63-acre site is located at the terminus of November Avenue, approximately 650 feet west of its intersection with Glen Alden Drive, on parcel 814-713-4008. The zoning is M-1 Light Industrial District and ASO Airport Safety Overlay District. County water and sewer. (Varina)

Mr. Witte - Is there any opposition to transfer of approval POD-06-08 (pt.) (POD2015-00274), Diamond Springs (formerly Eubank Center)? I see none.

Mr. Leabough - Mr. Chair, I move that the transfer request for a portion of POD-06-08 (pt.) (POD2015-00274), Diamond Springs (formerly Eubank Center), be approved on the expedited agenda subject to the conditions noted on the agenda.

Ms. Jones - Second.

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Leabough, a second by Mrs. Jones. All in favor say aye. All opposed? The motion passes.

The Planning Commission approved the transfer of approval request for POD-06-08 (pt.) (POD2015-00274), Diamond Springs (formerly Eubank Center), from Eubank Center, LLC to Diamond Virginia Partners, LLC, subject to the standard and added conditions previously approved and the following additional condition:

 A revised site plan showing the new property line shall be submitted to the County for administrative review and approval.

Ms. News - The next item is on page 22 of your agenda and located in the Three Chopt District. This is POD2015-00223, Short Pump Manor at Bacova, Section 2. This is a landscape plan. Staff recommends approval.

LANDSCAPE PLAN

POD2015-00223 Short Pump Manor at Bacova Section 2 – 4660 Pouncey Tract Road Youngblood, Tyler and Associates for Bacova, LLC: Request for approval of a landscape plan, as required by Chapter 24, Sections 24-106 and 24-106.2 of the Henrico County Code. The 9.284-acre site is located on the west line of Pouncey Tract Road (State Route 271), approximately 700 feet north of Bacova Drive, on part of parcel 738-766-9367. The zoning is R-5AC General Residence District (Conditional), and WBSO West Broad Street Overlay District. County water and sewer. (Three Chopt)

Mr. Witte - Is there any opposition to POD2015-00023, Short Pump Manor at Bacova Section 2? I see none.

Mr. Branin - Mr. Chairman, I'd like to move that POD2015-00023, Short Pump Manor at Bacova Section 2, Landscaping Plan, be approved on the expedited agenda.

161 Mr. Leabough - Second.

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Branin, a second by Mr. Leabough. All in favor say aye. All opposed? The motion passes.

The Planning Commission approved the landscape plan for POD2015-00023, Short Pump Manor at Bacova Section 2, subject to the annotations on the plans, and the standard conditions attached to these minutes for landscape and fence plans.

Ms. News - That completes our expedited agenda.

Ms. Moore - Mr. Chairman, now we move on to the agenda where we have requests for Subdivision Extensions of Conditional Approval. These will be presented by Mr. Lee Pambid.



SUBDIVISION EXTENSIONS OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY

Subdivision	Original No. of Lots	Remaining Lots	Previous Extensions	Magisterial District	Recommended Extension
SUB2011-00054 (SUB-008-11) Kings Manor (July 2011 Plan)	9	9	3	Varina	6/24/2016 7/27/2016
SUB2014-00087 Kingsland Greene (July 2014 Plan)	120	120	0	Varina	6/24/2016 7/27/2016
SUB2014-00072 Laurel Pines (June 2014 Plan)	3	3	0	Brookland	6/24/2016 7/27/2016

191

Mr. Witte -192

Good morning.

193 194

195

196

Good morning. This map indicates the location of three Mr. Pambid subdivisions that are presented for extensions of conditional approval. They are eligible for a one-year extension to July 27, 2016. Please note in the addendum the corrected extension date for all three of these cases. These extensions are for informational purposes only and do not require Commission action at this time.

197 8 199

> This concludes my presentation. Staff can now field any questions you have regarding these.

201 202 203

200

Mr. Witte -

Any questions? I see none. Thank you, sir.

204 205

Mr. Pambid -

You're welcome.

206 207

208

Ms. Moore -Mr. Chairman, we now move to your regular agenda starting on page 3. This is for POD-76-04. This is ARHC AORMDVA01, LLC for NNN Advanced Orthopaedic Etals. Mr. Pambid.

209 210 211

212

TRANSFER OF APPROVAL

POD-76-04 POD2015-00129 Advanced Orthopaedic Center – 7858 Shrader Road

ARHC AORMDVA01, LLC for NNN Orthopaedic Etals: Request for transfer of approval as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code from CSE Real Estate, LLC to ARHC AORMDVA01, LLC. The 5.0-acre site is located on the north line of Shrader Road, approximately 500 feet west of its intersection with Hungary Spring Road, on parcel 764-

753-8211. The zoning is O-2C Office District (Conditional).

		County water and sewer. (Brookland)
213	W B - 111	
214		he applicant has completed all work pursuant to the
215		7, 2015. Deficiencies outlined in that report include missing
216		ell as pavement directional markings. The new owner accepts
217	_	e for continued compliance with the conditions of the original
218	approval.	
219	Staff recommends engravel	of this transfer request. This concludes my presentation. Staff
220 221	can now field any questions	
222	can now held any questions	you have regarding this.
223	Mr. Witte -	s there any opposition to transfer of approval POD-76-04
224		ed Orthopaedic Center? Any questions for Mr. Pambid? I see
225	,	ransfer of approval POD-76-04 (POD2015-00129), Advanced
226		roved as presented subject to previously approved conditions
227	and annotations on the plans	
228	and an analysis and plants	
229	Ms. Jones -	Second.
230		
231	Mr. Witte - V	Ve have a motion by Mr. Witte, a second by Mrs. Jones. All in
232	favor say aye. All opposed?	The motion passes.
233		
234		approved the transfer of approval request for POD-76-04
235		ed Orthopaedic Center from CSE Real Estate, LLC to ARHC
236	AORMDVA01, LLC, subject	to the standard and added conditions previously approved.
237		
238		he next item is on page 5 of your regular agenda. This is
239		dan Consulting Engineers for Dana W. Harding and Mill Road,
240	LLC. Mr. Pambid?	
241	SUBDIVISION	
242	SOBDIVISION	
243	SUB2015-00062	Jordan Consulting Engineers for Dana W. Harding and
	Hunton Fields (May 2015	Mill Road, LLC: The 7.53-acre site proposed for a
	Plan) – 11581 Mill Road	subdivision of 13 single family dwellings is located on the
	Tidil) Troot Will Road	south line of Mill Road, approximately 250 feet east of
		Swanson Mill Way, on parcel 769-774-0539. The zoning is
		R-2 One-Family Residence District. County water and
		sewer. (Brookland) 13 Lots
244		
245	Mr. Witte -	s there any opposition to SUB2015-00062, Hunton Fields
246	(May 2015 Plan)? I see non	
247		
248	Mr. Pambid -	es sir. This proposal is for a thirteen-lot subdivision on two
249	proposed cul-de-sac streets	emanating from Mill Road. Staff has heard from four adjacent



property owners regarding this proposal. Their concerns include the location and screening of the BMP, the impact of construction on landscaping and fencing within existing easements, and drainage issues.

253 254

Staff requested that the common area and the BMP be designed in such a way as to minimize the impact to adjacent properties. The developer has since provided a revised plan with the following changes:

256257258

259

260

261

255

• The dry BMP and common area, previously proposed directly adjacent to two lots in the Hunton Estates subdivision, has been moved next to Mill Road. That's this lot up here. It was previously on this lot here. Therefore, the public drainage easement between lots 14 and 15 of Section B of Hunton Estates will not be disturbed.

262263264

265

266

The proposed sanitary sewer line for Darleanna Court, originally located along the
western property line, has been moved away from the adjacent parcel. That's this
feature right here. It was previously proposed to be directly on the property line.
That's been moved away about thirty-five feet.

267268269

270

274

275

276

 A landscape easement has been added at the end of Lyons Lane to provide screening for the end of the cul-de-sac from the affected lot in Hunton Estates.
 There is little easement right here designated for landscaping.

271

The proposed sanitary public sewer line for Lyons Lane remains in its originally proposed location through a public easement between lots 15 and 16, which was recorded in 2003. A sidewalk is proposed along the south line of Mill Road and along one side of each of the streets. A conceptual landscape plan was also submitted, but provided for informational purposes only.

277278279

Since the distribution of the agenda, one letter of support has been received by staff. This letter is from the owners of lot 15 in Hunton Estates.

280 281 282

Staff recommends approval subject to the annotations on the plans, standard conditions for developments of this type, and additional conditions 13 through 16.

284 285

283

This concludes my presentation. Staff can now field any questions you have regarding this. The applicant, Brian Duke of Duke Development, is also here.

286 287

20,			
288	Mr. Witte -	Any questions for Mr. Pambid? Would the applicant come	
289	down, please?		

290

Mr. Duke - Good morning.

291292293

Mr. Witte - State your name, please.

29

Good morning, my name is Brian Duke, Duke Development.

Mr. Duke -

206		
296 297	Mr. Witte -	Brian, I just wanted to make note that I think you've done an
298		with these neighbors. It seems through the phone calls and letters
299		nat I've received that everyone is going to enjoy this property. There
		ppier than you, though, I would think.
300	is probably hobody hap	ppier than you, though, I would think.
301	Ma Dula	Theolise
302	Mr. Duke -	Thank you.
303	5.4 3.4 <i>C</i> 44	
304	Mr. Witte -	Anyway, I hope this goes forward with great success. I think it
305	will be an asset to the	area over there.
306		
307	Mr. Duke -	I think it will be too. I live right around the corner, and I want it
308	to look nice as well, so	
309		
310	Mr. Witte -	Does anybody have any questions for Mr. Duke?
311		
312	Ms. Jones -	No.
313		
314	Mr. Witte -	All right then. Thank you, sir.
315		
316	Mr. Duke -	Thank you.
317		
318	Mr. Witte -	With that, I move conditional approval of SUB2015-00062,
319	Hunton Fields (May 20	015 Plan), as presented, subject to the annotations on the plans,
320		subdivisions served by public utilities, and additional conditions 13
321	through 16.	
322	9	
323	Mr. Leabough -	Second.
324		
325	Mr. Witte -	We have a motion by Mr. Witte, second by Mr. Leabough. All
326		sed? The motion passes.
327	iaro, cay ayo, oppo	
328	The Planning Commis	ssion granted conditional approval to SUB2015-00062, Hunton
329), subject to the standard conditions attached to these minutes for
330	, ,	y public utilities, the annotations on the plans, and the following
331	additional conditions:	y public diffices, the difficultions on the plane, and the following
332	additional conditions.	
	13. Prior to requesti	ng the final approval, a draft of the covenants and deed restrictions
333	•	
334		ance of the common area by a homeowners association shall be ne Department of Planning for review. Such covenants and
335		
336		be in a form and substance satisfactory to the County Attorney and
337		d prior to recordation of the subdivision plat.
338		ndscape plan addressing the 25 foot wide planting strip along Mill
339	•	non area landscaping around the BMP, the street tree locations, and
340	the plantings in	the landscape easement adjacent to Hunton Estates shall be

submitted to the Department of Planning for review and approval prior to recordation of the plat.

15. A County sidewalk shall be constructed along the south side of Mill Road.

16. Any necessary offsite drainage easements must be obtained prior to final approval of the construction plan by the Department of Public Works.

Mr. Witte - Before we go on, can we meet our guests?

349 Ms. Moore - Absolutely.

351 Mr. Witte - We have some guests with us this morning. Would you like to come down and introduce them?

Ms. Klevinksy - Good morning, Mr. Chair, members of the Planning Commission. My name is Cristol Klevinsky. I'm a management specialist in the County Manger's Office. I coordinate our summer interns. I thought as part of their summer experience they should attend a Planning Commission meeting, so we picked today to come and hear your cases. I will ask them to stand up and introduce themselves, if you'll permit me to do that. And also with us are the three County attorney interns. I wanted them to attend to specifically since the amendment for the zoning ordinance—I believe is the right way to say that—is on this agenda. So I wanted them to hear that as well. Lastly, Mike Schnurman and Holly Zinn from our office are also with us.

If you'll let them introduce themselves, I'll ask them to do that. You want to go ahead and stand up first?

367 Mr. Branin - You all have to come down.

369 Ms. Jones - If you don't mind.

371 Mr. Branin - We are so sorry to do this, but it's recorded.

373 Ms. Klevinsky - Okay, very good.

Mr. Branin - And this way we get to ask each of every one of you a lot of questions.

Ms. Waters - Oh good. Good morning. My name's Eileen Waters, and I'm a legal intern with the County Attorney's Office.

381 Mr. Waschler - Hey, uh—sorry.

383 Mr. Witte - Hey.

Mr. Waschler - How's it going?

387	Mr. Branin -	What's up, dude?
388		
389 390	Mr. Waschler -	Nothing much.
391	Mrs. O'Bannon -	Could you expand on where you're going to school or you have
392	a major or you're in colle	ge? Can you come back and add to that? Thank you.
393		
394	Ms. Waters - Richmond.	I'm going to be a third-year law student at the University of
395 396	Richmond.	
397	Mrs. O'Bannon -	Very good. Thank you.
398		, g
399	Mr. Witte -	Hey.
400		
401	Mr. Waschler -	Hello. I'm Ben Waschler. I'm going to be a third-year law
402 403	student at william and M	ary. So far I've been the best intern. That's pretty much it.
404	Mr. Branin -	And where are you from?
405	W. Branni	That who is allo you holl.
406	Mr. Waschler -	I'm from Richmond, Virginia, and I went to Penn State
407	undergrad.	
408		
409	Mr. Branin -	And you are from Richmond?
410	Mr. Waschler -	Yes sir.
411 412	WII. VVascillei -	Tes sir.
413	Mr. Branin -	Where'd you go to high school?
414		
415	Mr. Washler -	Freeman.
416		
417	Mr. Branin -	Freeman.
418 419	Mrs. O'Bannon -	Freeman. Oh, very good.
420	Wild. O Ballion	riceman. On, very good.
421	Mr. Lofton -	My name is Anthony Lofton, Jr. I just recently graduated from
422	Varina High School. I'm	going to George Mason in the fall. I'm going to be studying
423	business management w	rith a minor in entrepreneurship.
424		
425	Mrs. O'Bannon -	Excellent.
426	Mr. Leabough -	The best district in Henrico, right?
427 428	Mr. Leabough -	The best district in Herrico, right?
429	Mr. Lofton -	Oh, you know it.
430		
431	Ms. Parrish -	Hi, I'm Audrey Parrish. I'm a rising junior at Virginia Tech and
432	studying political science	, Spanish, and sociology. I'm interning with the County Manager.

Mr. Branin -	Are you from Henrico?
Ms. Parish -	I went to Deep Run.
Mr. Branin -	Deep Run.
ls. Fitzgerald - ttorney's Office. I am a 3 graduated from Hermitag	Hi, I'm Shannan Fitzgerald, and I'm an intern with the County L, or rising third-year law student at the University of Richmond. ge High School.
/lrs. O'Bannon -	Very good.
Ir. Branin - county. That is excellent.	We have a good blend of all of our schools throughout the Have you all enjoyed your time?
Several -	Yes.
Mr. Branin -	And when do you finish?
Ms. Fitzgerald -	I have two more weeks after this one.
Mr. Waschler -	[Off microphones.] Two days.
Ir. Branin -	Two days? Dude, seriously?
emale -	[Off microphone.] I have one more week.
Mr. Branin - County?	And are any of you going to try to come back to Henrico
Several -	[Off microphone; inaudible.]
Mr. Branin -	Good answer, good answer.
Mrs. O'Bannon - was an award-winning pro some of the interns, right?	I know Ms. Klevinsky can talk or expand on the fact that this ogram with the National Association of Counties. And we do hire
last couple of years. I thin And they've had at least	That's correct. I think we've had—well, HR would be the best think close to eighty interns since we started the program in the nk they recently have hired three interns into full-time positions. double or triple that number apply for positions. So yes, we're rease and a hig difference in what this program—award winning

476

477

starting to see a good increase and a big difference in what this program—award-winning

program, as you mentioned—is making with the County. I'm very proud of it.

479 Mrs. O'Bannon - Right. Thank you.

Mr. Witte - Thank you.

483 Several - Thank you.

Mr. Leabough - Good luck with school.

Ms. Moore - Moving on with the agenda—and thank you for that presentation. On page 9 of your regular agenda is POD2015-00133. This is Timmons Group for Talley Family LTD Partnership and MGP Retail Consulting, LLC. This will be presented by Ms. Crady.

(Deferred from the June 24, 2015 Meeting)

PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT AND LIGHTING PLAN

> POD2015-00133 MGP Retail Grocery Store – 5110 S. Laburnum Avenue

Timmons Group for Talley Family LTD Partnership and MGP Retail Consulting, LLC: Request for approval of a plan of development and lighting plan, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code, to demolish an existing car dealership building and construct a one-story, 36,170 square foot retail grocery store. The 4.63-acre site is located on the west line of S. Laburnum Avenue, approximately 250 feet south of Williamsburg Road (U.S. Route 60), on part of parcel 816-713-3624. The zoning is M-1 Light Industrial District, and ASO Airport Safety Overlay District. County water and sewer. (Varina)

Mr. Witte - Is there any opposition to POD2015-00133, MGP Retail Grocery Store? I see none. Ms. Crady.

499 Ms. Crady - Good morning.

Mr. Witte - Good morning.

Ms. Crady - This plan of development was deferred from your June 24, 2015 Planning Commission hearing to provide an opportunity to reexamine the loading dock and dumpster corral configuration. The location of these two elements has not changed, but the applicant has made several changes to the plans to support the request for the configuration shown on the plan. The masonry screen wall has been raised to include twelve feet of height that you can see in this rendering. It was previously eight, so it will be twelve feet. And then a roll-down door was added to the loading dock, as you can see here. In addition, the landscape plan now shows dense evergreens to be planted around the dumpster corral and will be installed at eight feet in height at the time of planting.



Staff supports this configuration due to the mitigation of potential views into the dumpster area – if it were oriented the other way at the end of a drive aisle from the entrance. There are some cases in the County where this has been supported, and this is a good example of how it can be implemented correctly.

The lighting plan is also included in the plans for the approval. No changes were made since last month.

Staff continues to recommend approval subject to the annotations on the plan, the standard conditions for developments of this type, and conditions 11B and 29 through 34 in your agenda.

Several representatives from MGP Retail are here. Patrick Waldron, Noah Bachow, and Brian Kearney. Ryan Ritterskamp and Junie West are here from Timmons. And the architect for the project, Ryan Doherty, is here if you have any questions of them. And staff can answer any questions you may have of staff.

Ms. Jones - I do. Mrs. Crady, we've all seen this case before and kind of struggled with the items that we're discussing today. The loading dock, is that a straight shot in from the parking lot level?

Ms. Crady - Are you asking about the grade?

Ms. Jones - Yes.

539 Ms. Crady - Okay.

Ms. Jones - In other words, the truck that is using that loading area will be fully visible. For instance, at the Aldi that we worked on, there is a bit of a downward slope that at least it's a bit more camouflaged.

Ms. Crady - There is the same configuration with the slope where it drops approximately four feet from the entrance of the ramp to the actual dock. This wall is higher than the one that we did at Aldi, and Aldi does not have a drop-down door. The applicant has informed us that at any time that there is not entering or exiting of this loading dock, they're able to close the roll-down door.

Ms. Jones - I think that's absolutely key, because you have obviously a very utilitarian use in a very visible spot. None of us really like this, but I understand where we are. I don't know how, closing that door, hopefully 90 percent of the time is going to be accomplished. Maybe the applicant can explain to us. But that, to me, is the whole key for whether this can really be a go. Just to drop that thought.

Ms. Crady - I think the other thing that may be helpful is to find out more about the operations for the coming grocer.

560	Mr. Leabough -	Could you talk along those same lines? We struggle with the						
561	dumpster location, but in talking with staff and talking with the applicant, it looks like							
562	actually orienting the dumpster to face the building is probably a better option than actually having the doors, which typically we deal with challenges. So can you speak to that a little							
563								
564	bit, please?							
565								
566	Ms. Crady -	Sure. The dumpster in this location has three sides and then						
567	an opaque gate. In our	experience, if an operator's gate is facing into their main entrance,						
568		close it so that they don't have to look at their own dumpster. The						
569		is that you're getting a lot more evergreen landscaping around this						
570	than you would see on							
571	,							
572	The quality of the mate	erials that are offered with this landscape plan are higher than you						
573		nd I'll zoom in there along the streetscape. You have several eight-						
574		en all of these trees here. I want say they are—						
575		,,,,,,,, .						
576	Ms. Jones -	They're shrubs, aren't they?						
577		,						
578	Ms. Crady -	There is emerald green arborvitae, there are 11 of those						
579	,	They are drawn like shrubs because they are columnar. They are						
580		lanted at eight-foot height. So there are two types of arborvitaes on						
581	here. It's very dense.							
582	,							
583	Honestly, it's probably	more heavily landscaped than any other dumpster that is along a						
584	right-of-way in the Cou							
585								
586	Ms. Jones -	Is this irrigated?						
587								
588	Ms. Crady -	You know, that's a good question. It's not proffered, so it's up						
589	to the user to decide	whether they want irrigation. They could probably answer that						
590	question, whether they	r're going to install it or not.						
591								
592	Mr. Leabough -	In your opinion, Ms. Crady, this is a better alternative than						
593	having the doors face	Laburnum.						
594								
595	Ms. Crady -	I believe that it is better than most alternatives other than						
596	putting it behind the bu	uilding.						
597								
598	Mr. Leabough -	I guess if they were to position it next to the loading dock on						
599	the rear portion of the s	site, you'd actually see more of the dumpster area than you're seeing						
600	now.							
601								
602	Ms. Crady -	On your approach into the site you would see that, yes.						
603	•							
604	Mr. Leabough -	I think with the enhanced landscaping, that actually is a better						
605	alternative than what w							



Ms. Crady - Yes. And you had expressed concerns about the servicing of the dumpster. Is that something you addressed with them?

Mr. Leabough - Yes.

Ms. Crady - Yes, okay.

614 Mr. Leabough - Any other questions?

616 Ms. Jones - Not for Ms. Crady.

Mr. Leabough - Would the applicant please come forward?

Mr. West - Good morning. I'm Junie West with Timmons Group. To all the interns, I was an intern forty years ago. Believe me, it goes quick. So make the most of it.

Mr. Chairman, Commission members, Ms. O'Bannon, we're here to ask for your approval of the case. One of the questions that I was going to kind of recap—and Aimee did a great job of kind of going back through the last thirty days. One of the concerns was the truck well. It is a four-foot recessed truck well. So in essence with the twelve-foot wall, there's kind of a sixteen-foot—I'll call it a parapet or barrier there. The pull-down door—there's probably a better technical term that Ryan Doherty could give me for that—it will be closed at all times. And that literally will be over 99 percent of the time because the only time that it will be open is when trucks come in and out. And that's only on an infrequent basis. That door will be permanently shut — over 99 percent of the time.

The added landscaping, we certainly wanted to take a look at the perspectives on that and make sure that we looked it at not only from the plan view but also from the three-dimensional view and the actual view. When we took a look at it with the original landscaping, we realized we needed more mature landscaping to enhance that. We made the decision to—l'Il call it do the elevated landscaping. So getting to see the drawings was certainly something we wanted to take a look at it and we felt pretty comfortable with.

The additional item that we revised was the inner parcel connectivity to CVS that was requested, and we did create that interconnectivity. Certainly minimizes, somewhat, road traffic for that interconnectivity and makes it convenient to exit other portions of the site as well.

We do have the development team that was mentioned here to answer any operation questions or engineering questions or architectural questions as it relates to the door material or whatever there may be.

Mr. Leabough - I'd like to hear from the store operator, please.

Mr. West - Sure.

652		
653	Mr. Branin -	Before Mr. West leaves, there was one question proposed
654	earlier to staff in regards	to irrigation. Is there existing irrigation there now?
655		
656	Mr. West -	I don't think there's existing irrigation.
657		
658	Mr. Branin -	Are you planning to put in irrigation? I mean, you guys are
659	responsible for the trees	, and you're putting in a lot of trees. So I would think—
660	Mr. West -	Luculd von
661	Wir. VVest -	I would, yes.
662 663	Mr. Branin -	It's going to be cheaper than replace trees.
664	WII. DIAIIIII -	it's going to be cheaper than replace trees.
665	Mr. West -	Do you know the answer to that, Ryan? It is irrigated, okay.
666	Wil. VVCSt	be you know the anower to that, regain the imigatou, exay.
667	Mr. Leabough -	It is irrigated.
668		3
669	Mr. West -	Yes.
670		
671	Mr. Branin -	I figured it would be.
672		
673	Mr. West -	I did, too, but I didn't want to say anything incorrect.
674		
675	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
676		
677	Mr. West -	I can't imagine we could put that level of landscaping there and
678	not have it.	
679	Mr. Dronin	Like Legid it's a lot sheaper to do it and time than twenty times
680 681	Mr. Branin -	Like I said, it's a lot cheaper to do it one time than twenty times.
682	Mr. Leabough -	Could you state your name, please?
683	Wii. Ecaboagii	Sould you state your name, please:
684	Mr. Waldron -	Yes. I'm Pat Waldron, and I'm director of real estate with MGP
685	Retailer US.	,
686		
687	Mr. Leabough -	Sir, could you speak to the frequency of deliveries, just so that
688	we understand your ope	erations?
689		
690	Mr. Waldron -	Yes, absolutely. It's very infrequent. We have one truck per day
691		stribution center. We don't have any other trucks coming, so one
692		n, evening—and that's it. So much less so than your standard
693	0	stribution center all of our goods come from, so we're not getting
694	deliveries from different	companies all day.
695		
696	Mr. Leabough -	Trash, the dumpster area. What do you anticipate the
697	rrequency of that dump	ster being emptied or what have you? And how will you handle

holidays where you have a lot of deliveries? I just don't understand enough about your operations. So can you speak to that? What I've experienced or what I've noticed is that holidays come up, there are a bunch of deliveries or what have you, and the dumpster piles up. That was the concern with having the dumpster on Laburnum. So could you speak to that, please?

Mr. Waldron - Yes, absolutely. I can't speak to the exact frequency, but what I can tell you is we're absolutely adamant about that sort of thing. We'd never have our dumpster overflowing. It wouldn't be something we would allow. So as frequently as needed. We're very, very particular with our real estate, the quality of the experience for the customer, so as much as needed. It would never be overflowing.

Mr. Leabough - So you would have the ability to call for an additional pickup or something if needed.

Mr. Waldron - Absolutely, absolutely.

Ms. Jones - Mr. . . ?

Mr. Waldron - Waldron.

Ms. Jones - Waldron. Actually, I do have just a couple of questions. My first is a comment, though. My introduction to your store was in Sicily last fall, as a matter of fact.

Mr. Waldron - Okay, great.

Ms. Jones - So I should expect that to be what I see here?

Mr. Waldron - It will be similar in the way we operate, but it'll be a lot more Americanized for the US. We won't be just bringing over our European store. As you probably saw, the prototype here is a lot different than the one in Europe. So some similarities, but it will be much more Americanized, and all the products will be sourced here in the US.

Ms. Jones - You did have a very successful operation, the one I was in.

Mr. Waldron - Thank you.

Ms. Jones - And we wish you well here. There are just a couple frustrating things. Mr. Branin touched on the irrigation. If your entire solution to this somewhat strange problem—we normally don't have this because this is not what we try to do is have these kinds of exposures on major thoroughfares. Irrigation is absolutely without a question going to be vital to keeping up what is the biggest part of this mitigation of the site. So good. Irrigation is absolutely necessarily.

Deliveries one time a day? I guess that's certainly as little as can be, but we would encourage you not to be a lax about closing that door. It's just not a view that folks should have. The parapet has been raised, and there is a bit of an incline so that yes, it does give some protection and a little bit of protection of the site views, but you'll see be able to see the operation; it'll be right in front of people's faces as they drive in there.

That leads me to really my last and really only big question: This prototype was presented to us as the prototype that was going to have to be used; this is how these stores are built. If we have to go through this with every store that comes to Henrico County, it's going to get old really quickly. Is there another prototype that you all are considering for stores or can you site other stores without having this issue come up?

Mr. Waldron - We have the option to move the loading dock, and I believe we've looked at the different options for the loading dock there. And that's the only one that physically worked on the site for our store. So we're happy to work with the County at other sites on a case-by-case by basis. The store size itself is pretty much set, but if we need to move the loading dock on different stores, we can. Unfortunately, that's not an easy process. Redesigning an entire store is quite complex, but it's something we can work with you all on.

Ms. Jones - But you understand our dilemma.

Mr. Waldron - Yes, absolutely.

Dumpster and loading areas in visible places are certainly not

768 Ms. Jones - what we want.

Mr. Waldron - Absolutely. And I think we've looked at those options with the staff, different dumpster locations. One in the back of the loading dock, in the back of the site, we were concerned about employee safety, having a dumpster in the very back of the site there. But it's something we're happy to work with you all on a case-by-case basis.

Ms. Jones - I'm happy to have your assurance on that.

Mr. Branin - You all are setting up your stores and your distribution throughout the Mid-Atlantic area. Are you putting your distribution center in Fredericksburg?

782 Mr. Waldron - Yes. The governor just announced we'll have a distribution center in Fredericksburg.

Mr. Branin - Did you look at Henrico?

787 Mr. Waldron - We looked all over the state.

Mr. Branin - Okay.



Mr. Witte -

So you settled for second best?

793 Mr. Branin -

We have a great area in Eastern Henrico that you should have

794 chosen.

Mr. Waldron - It's not to say that there might not be more to come. I'm more the retail store real estate, so I can't speak to exactly where we looked. But I know the state as a whole was studied.

800 Mr. Branin -

Great road network.

Mr. Leabough -

Corporate offices too. We'll take those.

Mr. Branin -

We like corporate offices as well.

Mr. Waldron -

I'll write that down.

Mrs. O'Bannon - If I can add one more thing. Having dealt with a lot of corporations through the years that come to us—let's say a Walgreens or a CVS or an Aldi—they usually have five or six different prototypes or five or six different plans. Do you have five or six different plans for your store? I think that's what Ms. Jones was getting at.

Mr. Waldron - At the moment, we have the one store size. We do have some flexibility with the loading dock. And as we continue to develop our prototypes, I'm sure we'll have different ones we can use. But at the moment, it is fairly standard.

Mrs. O'Bannon - Usually they come with a book full, or six or eight. Sometimes I've asked to see number eight or number five, if they have one that doesn't seem to go well on the site. So that's just a really broad suggestion.

Mr. Waldron - Right. It's absolutely something we're looking at. Great suggestion. Like I said, this is our initial phase of entering into the US, so we have the one store size where we can move some things around. But we obviously will be adapting the prototype for more flexibility down the road.

Mrs. O'Bannon - Another reason they have that many, if I may—say it's a Walgreens or something—is it's often in plans or in a zoning case that says it must look like colonial or must look like a certain style. I have seen styles where once I asked a corporation, you mentioned you had fourteen, can I see number twelve. And they said oh, that's one that we use in Florida. It has a roll-tile roof, you know, and it looks very Floridaish. We have a lot of zoning cases in our County where it says it needs to look like some other shopping center. We've had those before too. So if you come with some alternates, three or four, that would be helpful in any community. That's what we're getting at.

This issue of the loading dock and the dumpster is specific to this site. But in the future, you may be faced with it needs to be brick or it needs to have EIFS on it or the style has to be a certain kind of roofline or colors. We've dealt with Walmart, and they've been very open about that. They'll come in and show different colors or different styles for different shopping centers. So I just would like to point that out, that usually the larger corporations come in with maybe a half dozen possible looks to the exterior.

Mr. Waldron - Right, absolutely. I think in certain situations you're absolutely right, we'll have to adjust for things like colonial architecture. I think that's what our construction department is taking a look at at the moment.

- Mrs. O'Bannon There's one in Leesburg that I really, really like. There's a Walgreens in Leesburg. It happens to be in a historic district, though. In other words, there are specific things that the community has put on it.
- 849 850 Mr. Waldron - Right, right.
- 853
 Mr. Leabough Before I make a motion, I'd like to thank staff for their work, Ms.
 855 Crady and others for their efforts to bring this case to where it is today. I'd also like to thank

Any other questions?

the applicant and their team for at least working with us to come up with a solution to our concerns. So we thank you all for that as well.

concerns. So we thank you all for that as well.

With that I'd like to move that POD2015-00133, MGP Retail Grocery Store, be approved subject to annotations on the plans, standard conditions for developments of this type, and additional conditions on the agenda, 11B and 29 through 34.

863 Mr. Branin - Second.

841

845

852

859

860

861 862

868

869

870871

872

873

874

875

876

877

878

879

880

Mr. Witte -

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Leabough, a second by Mr. Branin.
All in favor say aye. Opposed? The motion passes.

The Planning Commission approved POD2015-00133, MGP Retail Grocery Store, subject to the annotations on the plans, the standard conditions attached to these minutes for developments of this type, and the following additional conditions:

- 11B. Prior to the approval of an electrical permit application and installation of the site lighting equipment, a plan including light spread and intensity diagrams, and fixture specifications and mounting heights details shall be revised as annotated on the staff plan and included with the construction plans for final signature.
- 29. The right-of-way for widening of S. Laburnum Avenue as shown on approved plans shall be dedicated to the County prior to any occupancy permits being issued. The right-of-way dedication plat and any other required information shall be submitted to the County Real Property Agent at least sixty (60) days prior to requesting occupancy permits.



885

- 30. A concrete sidewalk meeting County standards shall be provided along the west side of S. Laburnum Avenue.
- 31. There shall be no outdoor storage or outdoor storage in moveable storage containers, including but not limited to, cargo containers and portable on demand storage containers.
- Approval of the construction plans by the Department of Public Works does not establish the curb and gutter elevations along the Henrico County maintained right-of-way. The elevations will be set by Henrico County.
- Evidence of a joint ingress/egress and maintenance agreement must be submitted to the Department of Planning and approved prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for this development.
 - 34. The location of all existing and proposed utility and mechanical equipment (including HVAC units, electric meters, junctions and accessory boxes, transformers, and generators) shall be identified on the landscape plan. All building mounted equipment shall be painted to match the building, and all equipment shall be screened by such measures as determined appropriate by the Director of Planning or the Planning Commission at the time of plan approval.

898 899 900

892

893

894

895

896

897

Mr. Witte -

Thank you, sir.

901 902 903 Mr. Waldron - Thank you for your time. We're looking forward to working with you in the future. And also we would like to thank staff as well. They've been extremely easy to work with.

905 906

Ms. Moore - Next on the agenda is POD2015-00185. This is Silvercore for Oakview Properties, LLC and Haley Builders. I should note this is on page 13 of your regular agenda and page 1 of your revised agenda. Mr. Pambid.

907 908 909

(Deferred from the June 24, 2015 Meeting)

910 PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT

911

POD2015-00185 Lindsay's Auto Repair Addition – 8701 Oakview Avenue POD-42-85 Revised Silvercore for Oakview Properties, LLC and Haley Builders: Request for approval of a plan of development, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code, to construct a 2,890 square foot addition to an existing 4,106 square foot auto repair building. The 0.50-acre site is located on the east line of Oakview Avenue, approximately 600 feet south of its intersection with Oakdale Avenue, on parcel 771-755-8541. The zoning is M-1 Light Industrial District. County water and sewer. (Brookland)

912 913

Mr. Witte - Is there anyone in opposition to POD2015-00185, Lindsay's Auto Repair Addition? I see none. Mr. Pambid.

914915

Mr. Pambid -

Good morning.

917								
918	Mr. Witte -	Good morning.						
919 920 921 922 923 924 925	proposal as presented la	This plan was deferred from last month's meeting after some dition of the pavement. No changes have been made to the ast month; however, since the distribution of the Planning at week, the applicant has agreed to pave the asphalt area as a your addendum.						
926 927 928 929		mend approval subject to the annotations on the plans, the evelopments of this type, and additional conditions 29 through						
930 931 932		ntation. Staff can now field any questions you have regarding project engineer with Silvercore is also here.						
933 934	Mr. Witte -	Any questions? Yes ma'am.						
935 936 937	Ms. Jones - Is there a time frame on th	Mr. Pambid, I'm happy they've agreed to repave the asphalt.						
938 939 940	Mr. Pambid - don't have a time frame or	It would have to be done as part of the construction, but we in that.						
941 942 943 944		When I spoke to the gentleman—actually, I was there—he said the construction was finished so that they wouldn't tear up the that would be a condition of the occupancy permit.						
944 945 946	Ms. Jones -	Okay, that would be fine.						
947 948 949	Mr. Witte - anybody like to hear from	Any other questions for Mr. Pambid? I see none. Would the applicant? Let's have the applicant come down.						
950 951	Mr. Bowman -	Good morning. Andrew Bowman with Silvercore.						
952 953 954	Mr. Witte - your understanding also?	Mr. Bowman, you heard our little discussion up here. Is that						
955 956	Mr. Bowman -	Yes sir.						
957 958	Mr. Witte -	That it will be paved prior to occupancy?						
959 960	Mr. Bowman -	Yes sir.						
961 962	Mr. Witte -	And all the other conditions have been agreeable?						



Mr. Bowman -

Yes sir.

965 Mr. Witte -

Okay, I have no other questions. Any other questions? Okay,

thank you, sir.

966 967 968

Mr. Bowman -

Thank you.

969 970

Mr. Witte - With that I move approval of POD2015-00185, Lindsay's Auto Repair Addition, as presented, subject to the annotations on the plan, standard conditions for developments of this type, and additional conditions 29 through 31.

972 973

971

973

Mr. Leabough -

Second.

975 976

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Witte, second by Mr. Leabough. All in favor say aye. Opposed? The motion passes.

977978979

The Planning Commission approved POD2015-00185, Lindsay's Auto Repair Addition, subject to the annotations on the plans, the standard conditions attached to these minutes for developments of this type, and the following additional conditions:

981 982 983

984

985

36

980

29. The right-of-way for widening of Oakview Avenue as shown on approved plans shall be dedicated to the County prior to any occupancy permits being issued. The right-of-way dedication plat and any other required information shall be submitted to the County Real Property Agent at least sixty (60) days prior to requesting occupancy permits.

987 988 989

30. All repair work shall be conducted entirely within the enclosed building.

990991992

31. The location of all existing and proposed utility and mechanical equipment (including HVAC units, electric meters, junction and accessory boxes, transformers, and generators) shall be identified on the landscape plans. All equipment shall be screened by such measures as determined appropriate by the Director of Planning or the Planning Commission at the time of plan approval.

993 994 995

Ms. Moore - The next item is on page 15 your agenda. This is POD2015-00229. This is Silvercore for Don-Barry, LLC and Michael Sifen, Inc.

996 997

PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT AND LIGHTING PLAN

998 999

POD2015-00229 Mini-Price Warehouse II – 4300 W. Broad Street (U.S. Route 250) (POD-31-09 Revised) Silvercore for Don-Barry, LLC, and Michael Sifen, Inc.: Request for approval of a plan of development and lighting plan, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code, to remove an existing one-story building and construct a three-story 42,075 square foot self-storage facility adjacent to an existing 105,240 square foot self-storage facility. The 1.87-acre site is located on the north side of West Broad Street (U.S. Route 250),

approximately 1,000 feet south of Westmoreland Street, on

parcel 776-734-8993. An additional portion of the site, totaling 0.85 acres, is located within the City of Richmond, along W. Broad Street (U.S. Route 250). The zoning is M-1 Light Industrial District. County water and sewer. (Brookland)

1000								
1001	Mr. Witte -	Is th	nere	any	opposition	to	POD2015-00229,	Mini-Price
1002	Warehouse II? I see none	e. Mr. G	arrisc	n.				
1003								
1004	Mr. Garrison -	Good	morr	ning.	This is a re	eque	st to remove an e	xisting one-
1005	story building and constru	uct a th	ree-ste	ory 4	2,075-squa	re-fo	ot self-storage facil	lity adjacent
1006	to an existing 105,240-s	quare-1	foot se	elf-st	orage facilit	y ap	proved with POD-	-31-09. The
1007	building straddles the Co						e feet of the buildin	g in the city
1008	and 21,612 square feet of	of the bu	uilding	in H	enrico Cour	nty.		
1009								
1010	The color and materials				•		•	-
1011	The lighting plan propos	es two	new	LED	wall packs	nea	r the door and the	rear of the
1012	building. The rest of the	site will	be lit	by e	existing LED) ligh	t fixtures approved	d with POD-
1013	31-09.							
1014								
1015	Staff can recommend							
1016	conditions for developme							
1017	representatives of the ap	plicant	are av	ailab	le to answe	ran	questions that you	u may have.
1018								
1019	Mr. Witte -	Do w	e hav	e an	y questions	for	Mr. Garrison? I hav	ve one. Has
1020	this been approved by th	e City o	of Rich	nmon	d?			
1021								
1022	Mr. Garrison -						e with the City of	
1023	They are reviewing the pl							
1024	review. I think this is bei					ermit	. Andrew Bowman	can handle
1025	that or answer that part b	etter th	an I c	ould.				
1026								
1027	Mr. Witte -	We'll	have	Mr. I	Bowman co	me o	lown then.	
1028		_						
1029	Mr. Leabough -	Does	s this a	applic	cant own the	e sto	rage facility next do	oor as well?
1030								
1031	Mr. Garrison -	Yes	sir, it c	does.				
1032						01		
1033	Mr. Leabough -	Ihat	's wha	at I w	as thinking.	Oka	y, thank you.	
1034		_						
1035	Mr. Bowman -			nıng	again. Andi	rew	Bowman with Silve	ercore. I'm a
1036	representative of the own	ner as v	vell.					
1037		-						
1038	Mr. Smith -	Don	Smith	, VICE	e president o	ot Si	fen Incorporated.	

6 40	Mr. Witte - is with the City of Richmo	Can you help us out with that question as far as what the status and?
1042	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
1043 1044	Mr. Bowman - running concurrently with	Yes. It's been submitted as a special use permit to the City. It's these plans as far as being reviewed.
1045 1046 1047	Mr. Witte - conditional on approval w	Okay. Do you understand that approval here would be vith the City also?
1048 1049	Mr. Bowman -	Yes sir.
1050 1051	Mr. Witte -	Any other questions? I feel like the Lone Ranger.
1052 1053 1054	Mr. Leabough - not a plan of developmen	Why are they asking you to submit a special use permit and it?
1055 1056 1057 1058		Because the zoning in the City of Richmond only allows for I ge on the parcel. We're getting an increase on that square footage nt zoning. It's a by-right zoning in Henrico; it's not in the city.
1059 1060 1061	Mr. Leabough -	Okay. Thank you.
1062	Mr. Witte - separate motions for the	All right, thank you. Madam Secretary, do we need to have POD and the lighting plan?
1064	Ms. Moore -	I believe we do.
1066 1067 1068	Mr. Leabough -	No.
1069 1070	Ms. Moore -	No, okay.
1071 1072 1073	Mr. Garrison - 11B. Whenever lighting is so we just need to add 1	No. Actually, though, I need to add a standard condition. It's approved with a POD, 11B is usually included. It was missed, 1B to it.
1074 1075 1076 1077		Okay. With that, I move that POD2015-00229, Mini-Price ed as presented, subject to the annotations on the plans, standard nts of this type, and additional conditions 11B and 29 through 23.

1079 Ms. Jones - Second.

1078

1083

1084

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Witte, a second by Mrs. Jones. All in favor say aye. Opposed? The motion passes.

The Planning Commission approved the plan of development and lighting plan for POD2015-00229, Mini-Price Warehouse II, subject to the annotations on the plans, the

standard conditions attached to these minutes for developments of this type, and the following additional conditions:

- 11B. ADDED Prior to the approval of an electrical permit application and installation of the site lighting equipment, a plan including light spread and intensity diagrams, and fixture specifications and mounting heights details shall be revised as annotated on the staff plan and included with the construction plans for final signature.
- 29. Details for the gate and locking device at the entrance road and emergency access road shall be submitted for review by the Traffic Engineer, Police and approved by the County Fire Marshall. The owner or owner's contractor shall contact the County Fire Marshall prior to completion of the fence installation to test and inspect the operations of the gates. Evidence of the Fire Marshall's approval shall be provided to the Department of Planning by the owner prior to issuance of occupancy permits.
- Outside storage shall not be permitted.

 The location of all existing and proposed utility and mechanical equipment (including HVAC units, electric meters, junction and accessory boxes, transformers,
 - and generators) shall be identified on the landscape plans. All equipment shall be screened by such measures as determined appropriate by the Director of Planning or the Planning Commission at the time of plan approval.
- Evidence that the City of Richmond has reviewed and approved construction plans for the portion of this site located within the City limits shall be provided prior to final approval of construction plans by Henrico County.

Ms. Moore - The last item on your agenda today is POD2015-00254. This is BCWH Architects for Second Baptist Church, TRS.

LIGHTING PLAN

1086

1087 1088 1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1102

1103

1104

1108

1109

1110

1112 1113

1121

POD2015-00254
Second Baptist Church –
Family Life Center
Addition – 9614 River
Road
(POD-40-00 Revised)

BCWH Architects for Second Baptist Church, TRS:
Request for approval of a lighting plan, as required by Chapter 24, Section 24-106 of the Henrico County Code.
The 10.56-acre site is located at the northeast corner of River Road and N. Gaskins Road on parcels 743-737-0432 and 743-737-1972. The zoning is R-1 One-Family Residential District. County water and sewer. (Tuckahoe)

- 1114
 1115 Mr. Witte Is there any opposition to the lighting plan for POD2015-00254
 1116 Second Baptist Church Family Life Center Addition? I see none. You have the floor.
- 1116 Second Baptist Church Family Life Center Addition? I see none. Tod have the noor.

 1117

 1118 Ms. Goggin Good morning.
- 1119
 1120 Mr. Witte Good morning.
- Ms. Goggin Second Baptist Church received POD approval and is currently undergoing construction plan review for a new Family Life Center expansion for their



church. Part of the expansion is the installation of new parking lots and lighting for the new and existing parking lots.

To clarify and give you an idea, these are the new parking lots. This is the new family facility. Currently, there is a parking lot right here that will be removed with the new building.

The church had a meeting with the adjacent property owners to discuss the proposed lighting plan with them on June 17, 2015. The proposed lights are LED and concealed source, which means they will be night-sky friendly and angle the light towards the ground versus up and out, mitigating possible light pollution. The applicant is proposing twenty-foot-tall poles for a majority of the lights with fourteen-foot-tall poles proposed for the lights at the two Gaskins Road entrances and the drop-off loop at the sanctuary/ Family Life Center. No new lights are proposed within the main building campus portion of the site.

The fourteen-foot tall lights are going to be in this area here, at this drop-off here, and in this loop area here. They are not proposing any new lights in the campus-style portion of the campus.

The light levels are below half a foot candle before they reach the adjacent George's Bluff neighborhood to the north or the parcel to the east. The levels on the photometric plan do not take into account obstacles such as landscaping that would further mitigate light trespass onto adjacent properties. Staff drew in the approximate half-foot candle line so it could be seen a little bit easier. This is the adjacent agricultural property. That's a single-family dwelling. You can see this is the half-foot candle line, and this is George's Bluff neighborhood. This is the River Road property and the single-family dwelling parcel. George's Bluff's neighborhood is back here, and this is Gaskins Road. This is where they're not proposing new lights.

The church intends to implement security lighting standards within this plan. They intend to keep the fourteen-foot-tall lights on all night, turn off some of the lights at 9 p.m., and turn off the rest at midnight. Should the need arise to keep the lights on beyond those hours due to security concerns, Second Baptist promises to contact neighbors to let them know that the lights will remain on after normal hours until the concern goes away.

Staff recommends approval subject to the annotations on the plan and the standard conditions for lighting plans. There is a representative from the architect here if you would like to ask them questions. And I am here should have any questions for me.

Mr. Witte - Any questions?

Ms. Jones - Actually. I think we have covered every aspect of this many times over. We have a situation here, though. I would like to just take a moment. This has been a cooperative effort, and I can't thank the church enough for the time and effort that they have taken to make sure that the concerns, no matter real or imagined, from the surrounding area are addressed to everyone's satisfaction. The neighbors from George's Bluff have been very proactive. The Moomaws have been involved as well. And we've had



1170 1171 1172 1173	are well satisfied. So it is	neighborhood in here to look over these lighting plans, and they just a nice feeling to bring something along that is in accordance nd certainly does reflect a quality project.		
1174 1175 1176 1177 1178 1179	plan. That has a few ele- with. But other than that, t staff. Christina's been gre	w we do have one more public hearing related to this, and that will be the landscape n. That has a few elements that we will have to probably make sure everyone's fine h. But other than that, this project is moving along well. And I thank everyone, especially ff. Christina's been great and very patient, and Mike Kennedy as well. So I thank you, d I would like to make a motion if there are no more questions. I don't need to talk to the olicant.		
1180 1181 1182	Mr. Witte -	You have the floor.		
1183 1184 1185	Ms. Jones - everyone.	I am perfectly content. This is a good lighting plan that suits		
1186 1187 1188 1189	I move approval of the lighting plan for POD2015-00254 Second Baptist Church – Family Life Center Addition. This is approval subject to annotations on the plans and standard conditions for lighting plans.			
1190 1191	Mr. Branin -	I'd like to second that.		
1192 1193 1194	Mr. Witte - favor say aye. Opposed?	We have a motion by Mrs. Jones, second by Mr. Branin. All in The motion passes.		
1195 1196 1197 1198		e Planning Commission approved the lighting plan for POD2015-00254 Second Baptist urch – Family Life Center Addition, subject to the standard conditions attached to these nutes for lighting plans.		
1199 1200 1201	Mr. Witte - speak.	I think we may have a guest in the back who wants to come		
1202 1203	Ms. Jones -	Not yet.		
1204 1205	Mr. Witte -	No, not yet.		
1206 1207	Ms. Jones -	We move to the next item on the agenda.		
1208 1209 1210	Mr. Witte - Commission?	Is there anybody else who would like to address the		
1211 1212 1213	Ms. Moore - approval of the minutes f front you.	Next, Mr. Chairman, we do have the consideration of your rom your June 24, 2015 meeting. We do have an errata sheet in		
1214 1215	APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 24, 2015			



Mr. Witte -

Okay.

1218 1219

Ms. Jones -

I move approval of the minutes as corrected.

1220

1221 Mr. Leabough - Second.

1222

Mr. Witte -1223

We have a motion by Mrs. Jones, second by Mr. Leabough. All

in favor say aye. Opposed? The motion passes.

1225

1224

1226 The Planning Commission approved the June 24, 2015 minutes as corrected.

1227

Ms. Moore -Next we do have a public hearing item. This is an amendment 1228 to the Zoning Ordinance to implement action of the 2015 General Assembly. This was 1229 given to you briefly in detail with a work session that we had earlier this month. I don't 1230

know if Mr. Tokarz has anything to add to initiate this. 1231

1232

1234

Mr. Tokarz -1233

Given that this is a public hearing, I'll just briefly describe the ordinance, if I might. I will keep my comments under ninety minutes, as Mr. Witte has

1235 asked.

1236

Mr. Witte -1237

No, that was ninety seconds.

1238 9

Ms. Moore -

Mr. Tokarz, could you just state your full name and what

department you're from?

1240 1241

Mr. Tokarz -1242

My name is Tom Tokarz. I'm in the Henrico County Attorney's

Office. 1243

1244 1245

1246

1247 1248

1249

The ordinance that is before the Commission today has four basic components. The first is a change that is—changes that are required by the 2015 legislation of the Virginia General Assembly dealing with the powers of the Board of Zoning Appeals related to the approval of variances. There are changes in both the definition of variances and in the powers themselves. Those changes have been reflected virtually verbatim into the County's ordinance.

1250 1251 1252

1253

1254

1255

1256

The second is there is one change to conform to state law that's actually been in effect since 1962 regarding the term of BZA members. The code provides right now for a term of three years; however, the state code provides for a term of five years. The Circuit Court has been making those appointments for five years when they were being done. So although the Circuit Court's in compliance, we want to conform the Zoning Ordinance to the state code. That would be the second change.

1257 1258 1259

The third changes are housekeeping changes to eliminate extraneous language and redundancies to modernize and streamline the language. This would be things like changing Chairman to Chair. And there are various stylistic changes throughout the

ordinance. Not any attempt to make any substantive changes with those housekeeping changes.

1263 1264 1265

1262

The fourth is three changes that are not required by state law, but which staff would put forward. Those changes are:

1266 1267 1268

1269

1270

1271

1. Change the requirement in the ordnance that limits a conditional use permit applicant to a one-year period for beginning work on the work permitted by the conditional use permit. The proposal in the ordinance would be to extend that period to two years. That would be in recognition of some of the difficulties that folks have had in getting their operations mobilized or getting financing available for that work.

1272 1273 1274

1275

2. A provision that parallels language that is in the Zoning Ordinance now with respect to rezoning applications. This would simply say that the BZA would not make any consideration of essentially the same application within one year after it's been acted on and has denied it. That is parallel to what is in the current ordinance related

3. There is a provision in the ordinance right now that allows the BZA to grant

temporary use permits as a conditional use permit. It's defined as being a period of

24 months. The recommendation is that the language would specify that the BZA

could not extend or grant another 24-month period for a temporary use permit on

the grounds that if it's going past 24 months, it's no longer a temporary use, and it's

something that should be brought forward to both the Planning Commission and

Any questions by the Commission? You were well over your

1276 1277

to rezoning. We would recommend this change.

the Board of Supervisors as a rezoning item.

1278 1279 1280

1280 1281 1282

1282 1283 1284

1285

That is the summary of the ordinance amendments. I'll be glad to answer any questions.

1287

Mr. Witte ninety seconds.

1290 1291

1294

1292 1293

Mr. Witte -

Mr. Tokarz --

Thank you, sir.

l apologize.

1295 1296

Mrs. O'Bannon - I found one thing in here. It says under Organization: The Board shall elect one of its members as chair and one as vice chair," and you pointed out that you took away the word *chairman*. And then it says, "The chair or in his absence." I think the grammatically correct thing now is to say "in their absence."

1298 1299 1300

1297

Mr. Witte -

Good catch.

1301

1302 Mrs. O'Bannon -

I'm just nitpicking.

1303 1304

04 Ms. Jones -

His or her?

1305

1306 Mrs. O'Bannon - You just use the term "their." I think that's grammatically what they use now. The chair or in their absence as vice chair. You know, instead of *his.*

1000		
6,9	Mr. Tokarz -	I see that revision, Mrs. O'Bannon.
1310 1311	Mrs. O'Bannon -	That's not a big deal.
1312 1313 1314	Mr. Tokarz - indicated as a plural.	I'd be glad to check on that. The word their to me usually is
1315 1316	Mrs. O'Bannon -	I know.
1317 1318 1319 1320	Mr. Tokarz - Board meeting.	But I would be glad to check into that between now and the
1321 1322	Mrs. O'Bannon -	You used to use his or her.
1323 1324	Mr. Tokarz -	Yes.
1325 1326	Mrs. O'Bannon -	To take away the gender portion of it.
1327 1328 1329	Mr. Tokarz - drafting these things.	Right. That is always one of the problems we have when we're
1330	Mrs. O'Bannon -	I know, I know.
1332 1333	Mr. Tokarz - we could avoid that proble	We could say "The chair, or in the chair's absence," and then em, if you'd like to do that.
1334		
1335 1336	Mrs. O'Bannon - now, that's all.	It's just I know that's a grammatical thing that they're using right
1337 1338 1339	Ms. Jones -	That's pretty clear.
1340 1341	Mr. Tokarz -	Pardon me?
1342 1343	Ms. Jones -	That's very clear.
1344 1345 1346	Mr. Tokarz - ordinance with that chang	Well then you certainly can recommend approval of the je.
1347 1348	Mrs. O'Bannon -	In the chair's absence?
1348 1349 1350	Ms. Jones -	In the chair's absence.
1351	Mr. Tokarz -	That would be in the second sentence of proposed 24-115.
1352	Mrs. O'Bannon -	One fourteen.

1354		
1355	Mr. Tokarz -	Well it's also one in 115.
1356		
1357	Mrs. O'Bannon -	One fifteen, okay.
1358	Mr. Tokarz -	Right. Both sections, then, 24-114 and 24-115.
1359 1360	IVII. TOKAIZ -	Right. Both sections, then, 24-114 and 24-115.
1361	Mrs. O'Bannon -	You're right. I didn't see that one. Okay.
1362	Wild. O Barmon	Tours right. Fullant observations. Sixay.
1363	Mr. Witte -	Since this is a public hearing, is there anybody in opposition or
1364	would like to make co	omments about that? I see none.
1365		
1366	Ms. Moore -	Mr. Chairman, I guess we would make a motion as noted with
1367	the changes regarding	ng the pronoun references.
1368	Ma Jamas	And we would make a motion to the Doord of Cuponicore
1369	Ms. Jones -	And we would make a motion to the Board of Supervisors.
1370	Ms. Moore -	That's correct.
1371 1372	IVIS. IVIOUTE -	mat's conect.
1372	Ms. Jones -	All right. I would like to move approval of these ordinance
1374		e two changes referenced for the chair to the Board of Supervisors.
1375		3
1376	Mr. Witte -	Second. We have a motion by Mrs. Jones, second by
1377	Mr. Witte. All in favor	say aye. Opposed? The motion passes.
1378		
1379	Ms. Moore -	Mr. Chairman, I have no other items for you today.
1380		A LA Plan and A Parameter A La Property of the
1381	Mr. Witte -	I would like a motion to adjourn.
1382	Ma Janea	So moved.
1383 1384	Ms. Jones -	30 moved.
1385	Mr. Witte -	Second. Thank you everyone for your patience and time.
1386	With VVIIIO	Social main, you story one for your parisment and annot
1387		111.161
1388		11/1/AB 1 2
1389		Marin /
1390		Mr. Robert H. Witte, Jr., Chairman
1391		
1392		
1393		
1394		
1395		\sim
1396		(hear than
1397		Mg. Jean Moore, Acting Secretary
1398 1399		ive. seal woole, Acting Secretary
10))		

PLANS OF DEVELOPMENT

A. Standard Conditions for all POD's:

- 1. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for connections to public water and sewer. (when the property is served by public utilities)
- 1A. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for connections to public water. The well location shall be approved by the County Health Department before a building permit is issued. Connection shall be made to the public water system when available within 300 feet of the site/building. (when not served by public water)
- 1B. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for connections to public sewer. The septic tank location shall be approved by the County Health Department before a building permit is issued. Connection shall be made to the public sewer when available within 300 feet of the site/building. (when not served by public sewer)
- The Director of the Department of Public Utilities shall approve the plan of development for construction of public water and sewer, prior to beginning any construction of these utilities.
 The Department of Public Utilities shall be notified at least 48 hours prior to the start of any County water or sewer construction.
- 3. The parking lot shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 24, Section 24-98 of the Henrico County Code.
- 4. The parking spaces shall be marked on the pavement surface with four-inch-wide traffic painted lines. All lane lines and parking lines shall be white in color with the exception that those dividing traffic shall yellow.
- 5. Sufficient, effectively usable parking shall be provided. If experience indicates the need, additional parking shall be provided.
- 6. Curb and gutter and necessary storm sewer shall be constructed as shown on approved plans.
- 7. The plan of development plan shall be revised as annotated on the staff plan dated July 22, 2015, which shall be as much a part of this approval as if details were fully described herein. Eight (8) sets of revised plans, including the detailed drainage, erosion control and utility plans, shall be submitted by the design engineer who prepared the plans to the Department of Planning for final review. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, twenty-one (21) sets of final plans for signature shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. Two (2) sets of the approved plan shall be attached to the building permit application. (Revised January 2008)
- 8. Two copies of an Erosion and Sediment Control Agreement with required escrow shall be submitted to the Department of Public Works. Approval is required prior to construction plan approval and beginning construction. The Department of Public Works shall be notified at least 24 hours prior to the start of any construction.
- 9. A detailed landscaping plan shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for review and approval prior to the issuance of any occupancy permits.
- 9. AMENDED A detailed landscaping plan shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for review and Planning Commission approval prior to the issuance of any occupancy permits.

10. All groundcover and landscaping shall be properly maintained in a healthy condition at all times. Dead plant materials shall be removed within a reasonable time and replaced no later than the next planting season.

11. Prior to the approval of an electrical permit application and installation of the site lighting equipment, a plan including light spread and intensity diagrams, and fixture specifications and mounting height details shall be submitted for Department of Planning review and

approval.

11. AMENDED - Prior to the approval of an electrical permit application and installation of the site lighting equipment, a plan including depictions of light spread and intensity diagrams, and fixture specifications and mounting height details shall be submitted for Department of

Planning review and Planning Commission approval.

11B. Prior to the approval of an electrical permit application and installation of the site lighting equipment, a plan including light spread and intensity diagrams, and fixture specifications and mounting heights details shall be revised as annotated on the staff plan and included with the construction plans for final signature. (For POD which includes lighting plan approval)

12. All exterior lighting shall be designed and arranged to direct the light and glare away from

nearby residential property and streets.

- 13. The site, including the parking areas, shall be kept clean of litter and debris on a daily basis. Trash container units/litter receptacles and recycling containers shall be maintained with regular pickups scheduled and shall be screened properly on all four sides. The gate(s) shall remain closed except when the receptacle(s) are being filled or serviced and shall be repaired or replaced as necessary. Details shall be included with the final site plan or required landscape plan for review and approval.
- 14. Required fire lanes shall be marked and maintained in accordance with the Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code.
- 15. Traffic control signs shall be provided as indicated on the Department of Planning Staff plan. All signs shall be fabricated as shown in <u>The National Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways</u> and <u>The Virginia Supplement to The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways</u>.

16. The assigned property number(s) shall be displayed so it is easily readable from the street. If assistance is needed with the address, please contact the Department of Planning at 501-4284. The Planning Department must assign all property addresses. (Revised January 2008)

17. The owner shall have a set of plans approved by the Director of Public Works, Public Utilities and Secretary of the Planning Commission available at the site at all times when work is being performed. A designated responsible employee shall be available for contact by County Inspectors.

18. The property shall be developed as shown on the plan filed with the case and no changes or additions to the layout shall be made without the approval of this Commission.

- 19. Upon completion of the improvements and prior to the certification of the permanent occupancy permit, the owner shall furnish a statement by the engineer or land surveyor who prepared the POD plan, to the effect that all construction including water and sewer is in conformance to the regulations and requirements of the POD.
- 20. The approved Plan of Development is granted by the Planning Commission only to the owners(s)/applicant(s) listed on the Plan of Development application on file for this project. Upon written notification to the Director of Planning, the Plan of Development approval may be transferred to subsequent owner(s) subject to approval by this Commission. (Revised July 2007)

- 21. Vehicles shall be parked only in approved and constructed parking spaces.
- 22. The name of this development, as designated in this approval, shall be the name used for marketing and public recognition purposes. A written request for a name change must be received and granted by the Department of Planning before such a change can be implemented.
- 23. The site, including paving, pavement markings, signage, curb and gutter, dumpster screens, walls, fences, lighting and other site improvements shall be properly maintained in good condition at all times. Any necessary repairs shall be made in a timely manner.
- 24. The developer shall provide fire hydrants as required by the Department of Public Utilities and Division of Fire.
- 25. Insurance Services Office (ISO) calculations shall be included on the final construction plans for approval by the Department of Public Utilities prior to issuance of a building permit.
- 26. Any necessary off-site drainage and/or water and sewer easements must be obtained in a form acceptable to the County Attorney prior to final approval of the construction plans.
- 27. The easements for drainage and utilities as shown on approved plans shall be granted to the County in a form acceptable to the County Attorney prior to any occupancy permits being issued. The easement plats and any other required information shall be submitted to the County Real Property Agent at least sixty (60) days prior to requesting occupancy permits.
- 28. Deviations from County standards for pavement, curb or curb and gutter design shall be approved by the County Engineer prior to final approval of the construction plans by the Department of Public Works.
- 29. (Start of miscellaneous conditions)

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR LANDSCAPE /LIGHTING/FENCE PLANS

- 1. The plan shall be revised as shown in red on Staff plan dated July 22, 2015, which shall be as much a part of this approval as if all details were fully described herein. Five (5) sets of prints of the revised plan shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval stamps and distribution.
- 2. The property shall be developed as shown on the plan filed with the case and no changes or additions to the layout shall be made without the approval of this Commission.
- 3. The owner shall have a set of approved plans available at the site at all times when work is being performed. A designated responsible employee shall be available for contact by County Inspectors.
- 4. All groundcover and landscaping shall be properly maintained in a healthy condition at all times. Dead plant materials shall be removed within a reasonable time and replaced during the normal planting season. (DELETE IF NO LANDSCAPING)
- 5. All exterior lighting shall be shielded to direct lights away from adjacent residential property and streets. (DELETE IF NO LIGHTING)
- 6. All fences, walls, and screens, including gates and doors, shall be maintained in good repair by the owner. Trash and debris should not be allowed to accumulate along the fence or wall. (DELETE IF NO FENCE, WALL, OR DUMPSTER SCREEN)

- B. In Addition to Item A, the Following Standard Conditions for Approval of All Zero Lot Line Developments shall apply:
- 29. Roof edge ornamental features that extend over the zero lot line, and which are permitted by Section 24-95(i)(1), must be authorized in the covenants.
- 30. Eight-foot easements for construction, drainage, and maintenance access for abutting lots shall be provided and shown on the POD plans.
- 31. Building permit request for individual dwellings shall each include two (2) copies of a layout plan sheet as approved with the plan of development. The developer may utilize alternate building types providing that each may be located within the building footprint shown on the approved plan. Any deviation in building footprint or infrastructure shall require submission and approval of an administrative site plan.
- 32. Windows on the zero lot line side of the dwelling can only be approved with an exception granted by the Building Official and the Director of Planning during the building permit application process.
- 33. The mechanical equipment for each building shall be located on its respective lot. Except for wall-mounted electric meters, in no case shall the eight-foot easement for construction, drainage, and maintenance access on the abutting lot be used to locate other mechanical equipment (such as HVAC equipment, generators, and the like) for the subject lot.
- C. Standard Conditions for Approval of All Dry Cleaners and Laundries in Addition to Item A:
- 29. The dry cleaning establishment shall use only non-inflammable cleaning solvents and have fully enclosed cleaning and solvent reclamation processes and fully enclosed pressing equipment with no outside steam exhaust.
- D. In addition to Item A, the Following Conditions for Approval of All Shopping Centers Shall Apply:
- 29. Only retail business establishments permitted in a **ZONE** may be located in this center.
- 30. The ground area covered by all the buildings shall not exceed in the aggregate 25 percent of the total site area.
- 31. No merchandise shall be displayed or stored outside of the building(s) or on sidewalk(s).
- E. In Addition to Item A, the Following Standard Conditions for Approval of All Multi-Family Shall Apply:
- 29. The unit house numbers shall be visible from the parking areas and drives.
- 30. The names of streets, drives, courts and parking areas shall be approved by the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission and such names shall be included on the construction plans prior to their approval. The standard street name signs shall be installed prior to any occupancy permit approval.

F. In addition to Item A, the Following Standard Conditions for Approval of All Service Station Developments Shall Apply:

- 29. This business shall not remain in operation after midnight and no exterior signs shall remain lighted after (12:00 midnight B-1) (1:00 o'clock a.m. B-2) (no limit B-3).
- 30. No merchandise shall be displayed outside of the building except that oil racks will be allowed on the pump islands.
- 31. This service station shall be used only for the sale of petroleum products and automobile accessories and parts. It shall not be used to sell or rent camping trailers, nor as a base of operation for truck fleets or fuel oil delivery or other such use that is not strictly a service station operation.
- 32. Only light repair work shall be allowed at this station, including motor tune-up, brake, generator, ignition, and exhaust repairs, and wheel balancing. The only work that can be performed outside the building is those services that are normally furnished at the pump island and the changing of tires.
- 33. No wrecked automobiles, nor automobiles incapable of being operated, shall be kept on the premises.
- 34. The prospective operator of this station shall come to the Department of Planning and sign the file copy of the special plan of development letter <u>before</u> he signs a lease with the oil company to operate this station.

G. STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR CONVENIENCE STORES WITH FUEL PUMPS IN A B-2 ZONE

- 29. Bulk storage of fuel shall be underground.
- 30. There shall be no exterior display of merchandise except on pump islands and on paved walkway areas within three (3) feet of building.
- 31. Lighting fixtures shall not exceed a height greater than twenty (20) feet.
- 32. No temporary storage of wrecked or inoperative vehicles or rental of vehicles, trailer campers, vans or similar equipment shall be permitted.
- 33. Not more than two (2) electronic amusement games shall be permitted.
- 34. Not more than two (2) vending machines for food and beverage and similar merchandise shall be permitted on the premises outside of an enclosed building.
- 35. The prospective operator of this facility shall come to the Department of Planning and sign the file copy of the special plan of development letter <u>before</u> he signs a lease with the oil company to operate this station.
- 36. The landscaping plan shall include details for screening of refuse containers and refuse storage facilities in accordance with Section 24-61(i).
- 37. Refuse containers or refuse storage facilities shall be serviced during business hours only.
- 38. The owner or manager on duty shall be responsible for temporarily closing the car wash facility when the on-site stacking space is inadequate to serve customer demand to prevent a backup of vehicles onto the public right-of-way.
- 39. The owner shall arrange with the Traffic Engineer to provide standard traffic control signs to notify customers that stopping or standing on the public right-of-way shall not be permitted near the entrances to the car wash facility. (If Car Wash Is Proposed)

H. STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR CONVENIENCE STORES WITH FUEL PUMPS IN A B-3 ZONE

29. Bulk storage of fuel shall be underground.

30. The owner or manager on duty shall be responsible for temporarily closing the car wash facility when the on-site stacking space is inadequate to serve customer demand to prevent a backup of vehicles onto the public right-of-way. (If Car Wash Is Proposed)

31. The owner shall arrange with the Traffic Engineer to provide standard traffic control signs to notify customers that stopping or standing on the public right-of-way shall not be permitted near the entrances to the car wash facility. (If Car Wash Is Proposed)

CONDITIONAL SUBDIVISION STANDARD CONDITIONS

Standard Conditions for Conventional Subdivisions Served By Public Utilities Public Water and/or Sewer

1. All requirements of Chapter 18, 19 and 24 of the Henrico County Code shall be met.

2. Construction plans, including proposed erosion and sediment controls, shall be submitted to

the Department of Planning at least 30 days prior to final approval.

3. Construction shall not commence until the Director of Planning has granted final approval of the plat; and until the construction plans including the detailed drainage, erosion control, and utility plans have been approved by the Department of Planning, the Department of Public Utilities, and the Department of Public Works and a preconstruction meeting has been held with the Department of Public Works. Plans for Final Subdivision review shall be submitted to the Department of Planning in accordance with the requirements of the Final Subdivision application. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, twenty-one (21) sets of final construction plans for signature shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All erosion and sediment control plans, agreements, and bonds must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the construction plans.

4. Clearing and grubbing shall not commence until a clearing and grubbing plan has been approved by the Department of Planning and the Department of Public Works. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, eight (8) sets of clearing and grubbing plans shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All appropriate bonds and agreements, authorizations from state and/or regulatory agencies for impacts to the Waters of the United States, and offsite easement plats must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the clearing and grubbing plans. Approvals must be updated prior to

recordation of the plat.

- 5. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for water. (Substitute condition 5A if well)
- 5A. A detailed soil analysis shall be performed and other requirements of the Health Department met before final plats are recorded. The developer shall have the center lines of all streets and lot corners staked to facilitate the examination of lots by the Health Department Sanitarians prior to filing for final approval and shall notify the Department of Planning and Health Department in writing when the staking has been done.

6. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for sewer. (Substitute condition 6A if on site sewage disposal/septic)

- 6A. A detailed soil analysis shall be performed and other requirements of the Health Department met before final plats are recorded. The developer shall have the center lines of all streets and lot corners staked to facilitate the examination of lots by the Health Department Sanitarians prior to filing for final approval and shall notify the Department of Planning and Health Department in writing when the staking has been done.
- 7. A copy of the letter from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission giving approval to the street names in this subdivision shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for final approval of street names before the recordation plat is submitted for review.

- 8. The plat shall be revised as shown in red on Staff plan dated **July 22 2015**, which shall be as much a part of this approval as if all details were fully described herein.
- 9. This approval shall expire on **July 21, 2016**, unless an extension is requested in writing stating the reason such extension is necessary. The request shall include the fee and must be filed a minimum of two weeks prior to the expiration date.
- 10. The name of this development, as designated in this approval, shall be the name used for marketing and public recognition purposes. A written request for a name change must be received and granted by the Department of Planning before such a change can be implemented.
- 11. The conditional approval of this plat by the Planning Commission does not imply that all lots shown thereon will be granted final approval. Such approval is contingent on each lot meeting a number of requirements including but not limited to minimum zoning requirements, Health Department requirements as applicable, and design considerations.
- 12. Prior to a request for final approval, the developer shall provide a buildable area plan showing information for all lots within the subdivision. Such plan shall be a part of the construction plans submitted for review and for signature. The buildable area plan shall be a minimum of 1" to 50' scale or larger and shall show the buildable area for the principal structure, all setback dimensions, the minimum lot width (perpendicular to the center line of the lot at the front building line), and if applicable, any Special Flood Hazard Areas (floodplains) and the area of each lot exclusive of floodplain, wetlands, easements, buffers, Chesapeake Bay Act Areas, wells and primary/reserved drainfields.

Standard Conditions for Conventional Subdivisions Not Served By Public Utilities

1. All requirements of Chapter 18, 19 and 24 of the Henrico County Code shall be met.

2. Construction plans, including proposed erosion and sediment controls, shall be submitted to

the Department of Planning at least 30 days prior to final approval.

3. Construction shall not commence until the Director of Planning has granted final approval of the plat; and until the construction plans including the detailed drainage and erosion control plans have been approved by the Department of Planning, and the Department of Public Works and a preconstruction meeting has been held with the Department of Public Works. Plans for Final Subdivision review shall be submitted to the Department of Planning in accordance with the requirements of the Final Subdivision application. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, fifteen (15) sets of final construction plans for signature shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All erosion and sediment control plans, agreements, and bonds must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the construction plans.

4. Clearing and grubbing shall not commence until a clearing and grubbing plan has been approved by the Department of Planning and the Department of Public Works, and a preconstruction meeting has been conducted with the Department of Public Works. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, eight (8) sets of clearing and grubbing plans shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All appropriate bonds and agreements, authorizations from state and/or regulatory agencies for impacts to the Waters of the United States, and offsite easement plats must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the clearing and grubbing plans. Approvals must be

updated prior to recordation of the plat.

5. A detailed soil analysis shall be performed and other requirements of the Health Department met before final plats are recorded. The developer shall have the center lines of all streets and lot corners staked to facilitate the examination of lots by the Health Department Sanitarians prior to filing for final approval and shall notify the Department of Planning and Health Department in writing when the staking has been done.

6. A copy of the letter from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission giving approval to the street names in this subdivision shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for final approval of street names before the recordation plat is submitted for review.

7. The plat shall be revised as shown in red on Staff plan dated July 22, 2015, which shall be

as much a part of this approval as if all details were fully described herein.

8. This approval shall expire on **July 21, 2016**, unless an extension is requested in writing stating the reason such extension is necessary. The request shall include the fee and must be filed a minimum of two weeks prior to the expiration date.

9. The name of this development, as designated in this approval, shall be the name used for marketing and public recognition purposes. A written request for a name change must be received and granted by the Department of Planning before such a change can be implemented.

- 10. The conditional approval of this plat by the Planning Commission does not imply that all lots shown thereon will be granted final approval. Such approval is contingent on each lot meeting a number of requirements including but not limited to minimum zoning requirements, Health Department requirements and design considerations.
- 11. Prior to a request for final approval, the developer shall provide a buildable area plan showing information for all lots within the subdivision. Such plan shall be a part of the construction plans submitted for review and for signature. The buildable area plan shall be a minimum of 1" to 50' scale or larger and shall show the buildable area for the principal structure, all setback dimensions, the minimum lot width (perpendicular to the center line of the lot at the front building line), and if applicable, any Special Flood Hazard Areas (floodplains) and the area of each lot exclusive of floodplain, wetlands, easements, buffers, Chesapeake Bay Act Areas, wells and primary/reserved drainfields.

Standard Conditions for Residential Townhouse for Sale (RTH) Subdivisions

1. All requirements of Chapter 18, 19 and 24 of the Henrico County Code shall be met.

2. Construction plans, including proposed erosion and sediment controls, shall be submitted to

the Department of Planning at least 30 days prior to final approval.

3. Construction shall not commence until the Director of Planning has granted final approval of the plat; and until the construction plans including the detailed drainage, erosion control, and utility plans have been approved by the Department of Planning, the Department of Public Utilities, and the Department of Public Works and a preconstruction meeting has been held with the Department of Public Works. Plans for Plan of Development and Final Subdivision review shall be submitted to the Department of Planning in accordance with the requirements of the Plan of Development and Final Subdivision applications. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, twenty-one (21) sets of final construction plans for signature shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All erosion and sediment control plans, agreements, and bonds must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the construction plans.

4. Clearing and grubbing shall not commence until a clearing and grubbing plan has been approved by the Department of Planning and the Department of Public Works, and a preconstruction meeting has been conducted with the Department of Public Works. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, eight (8) sets of clearing and grubbing plans shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All appropriate bonds and agreements, authorizations from state and/or regulatory agencies for impacts to the Waters of the United States, and offsite easement plats must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the clearing and grubbing plans. Approvals must be

updated prior to recordation of the plat.

5. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for water.

- 6. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for sewer.
- 7. A copy of the letter from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission giving approval to the street names in this subdivision shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for final approval of street names before the recordation plat is submitted for review.

8. The plat shall be revised as shown in red on Staff plan dated July 22, 2015, which shall be

as much a part of this approval as if all details were fully described herein.

9. This approval shall expire on **July 21, 2016**, unless an extension is requested in writing stating the reason such extension is necessary. The request shall include the required fee and must be filed a minimum of two weeks prior to the expiration date.

10. The name of this development, as designated in this approval, shall be the name used for marketing and public recognition purposes. A written request for a name change must be received and granted by the Department of Planning before such a change can be implemented.

- 11. The conditional approval of this plat by the Planning Commission does not imply that all lots shown thereon will be granted final approval. Such approval is contingent on each lot meeting all requirements, including but not limited to, minimum zoning requirements, and design considerations.
- 12. A draft of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for review, prior to final approval. The proposed Homeowners Association for the project shall be responsible for the exterior maintenance of all buildings and grounds.
- 13. All block corners shall be monumented and referenced, where possible, to the exterior boundaries of the site
- 14. The record plat shall contain a statement that the common area is dedicated to the common use and enjoyment of the homeowners of (name of subdivision) and is not dedicated for use by the general public. This statement shall refer to the applicable article in the covenants recorded with the plat.

Standard Conditions for Zero Lot Line Subdivisions

- 1. All requirements of Chapter 18, 19 and 24 of the Henrico County Code shall be met.
- 2. Construction plans, including proposed erosion and sediment controls, shall be submitted to the Department of Planning at least 30 days prior to final approval.
- of the plat; and until the construction plans including the detailed drainage, erosion control, and utility plans have been approved by the Department of Planning, the Department of Public Utilities, and the Department of Public Works and a preconstruction meeting has been held with the Department of Public Works. Plans for Plan of Development and Final Subdivision review shall be submitted to the Department of Planning in accordance with the requirements of the Plan of Development and Final Subdivision applications. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, twenty-one (21) sets of final construction plans for signature shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All erosion and sediment control plans, agreements, and bonds must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the construction plans.
- 4. Clearing and grubbing shall not commence until a clearing and grubbing plan has been approved by the Department of Planning and the Department of Public Works, and a preconstruction meeting has been conducted with the Department of Public Works. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, eight (8) sets of clearing and grubbing plans shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All appropriate bonds and agreements, authorizations from state and/or regulatory agencies for impacts to the Waters of the United States, and offsite easement plats must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the clearing and grubbing plans. Approvals must be updated prior to recordation of the plat.
- 5. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for water.
- 6. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for sewer.
- 7. A copy of the letter from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission giving approval to the street names in this subdivision shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for final approval of street names before the recordation plat is submitted for review.
- 8. The plat shall be revised as shown in red on Staff plan dated **July 22, 2015**, which shall be as much a part of this approval as if all details were fully described herein.
- 9. This approval shall expire on **July 21, 2016**, unless an extension is requested in writing stating the reason such extension is necessary. The request shall include the required fee and must be filed a minimum of two weeks prior to the expiration date.
- 10. The name of this development, as designated in this approval, shall be the name used for marketing and public recognition purposes. A written request for a name change must be received and granted by the Department of Planning before such a change may be implemented.

- 11. The conditional approval of this plat by the Planning Commission does not imply that all lots shown thereon will be granted final approval. Such approval is contingent on each lot meeting all requirements, including but not limited to, minimum zoning requirements, and design considerations.
- 12. Prior to a request for final approval, the developer shall provide a buildable area plan showing information for all lots within the subdivision. Such plan shall be a part of the construction plans submitted for review and for signature. The buildable area plan shall be a minimum of 1" to 50' scale or larger and shall show the buildable area for the principal structure, all setback dimensions, the minimum lot width (perpendicular to the center line of the lot at the front building line), and if applicable, any Special Flood Hazard Areas (floodplains) and the area of each lot exclusive of floodplain, wetlands, easements, buffers and Chesapeake Bay Act Areas.

Standard Conditions for Conventional Subdivisions Served By Public Utilities Road Dedication (No Lots)

- 1. All requirements of Chapter 18, 19 and 24 of the Henrico County Code shall be met.
- 2. Construction plans, including proposed erosion and sediment controls, shall be submitted to the Department of Planning at least 30 days prior to final approval.
- of the plat; and until the construction plans including the detailed drainage, erosion control, and utility plans have been approved by the Department of Planning, the Department of Public Utilities, and the Department of Public Works and a preconstruction meeting has been held with the Department of Public Works. Plans for Final Subdivision review shall be submitted to the Department of Planning in accordance with the requirements of the Final Subdivision application. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, twenty-one (21) sets of final construction plans for signature shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All erosion and sediment control plans, agreements, and bonds must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the construction plans.
- 4. Clearing and grubbing shall not commence until a clearing and grubbing plan has been approved by the Department of Planning and the Department of Public Works. Upon notice from the Department of Planning to the Engineer that all comments have been addressed, eight (8) sets of clearing and grubbing plans shall be submitted to the Department of Planning for approval signatures. All appropriate bonds and agreements, authorizations from state and/or regulatory agencies for impacts to the Waters of the United States, and offsite easement plats must be submitted to the Department of Public Works and approved prior to approval of the clearing and grubbing plans. Approvals must be updated prior to recordation of the plat.
- 5. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for water.
- 6. The owner shall enter into the necessary contracts with the Department of Public Utilities for sewer.
- 7. A copy of the letter from the Richmond Regional Planning District Commission giving approval to the street names in this subdivision shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for final approval of street names before the recordation plat is submitted for review.
- 8. The plat shall be revised as shown in red on Staff plan dated **July 22, 2015**, which shall be as much a part of this approval as if all details were fully described herein.
- 9. This approval shall expire on **July 21, 2016**, unless an extension is requested in writing stating the reason such extension is necessary. The request shall include the fee and must be filed a minimum of two weeks prior to the expiration date.
- 10. The name of this development, as designated in this approval, shall be the name used for marketing and public recognition purposes. A written request for a name change must be received and granted by the Department of Planning before such a change can be implemented.